
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 1, 2012 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
  

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the April 17, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission  
 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

2 RES. NO. R-81-12 
A Resolution approving the renewal application for placement of farmland in an agricultural 
district filed by Ellen J. Allenbaugh for parcel #44-100640 in the City of Piqua 

 
3. RES. NO. R-82-12 

A Resolution to approve the form and authorize the execution of Blue Creek Wind Energy 
Schedule with American Municipal Power, Inc. and taking of other actions in connection 
therewith regarding wind generated energy purchases 

 
4. RES. NO. R-83-12 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Edsall &  
Associates, LLC for the Engineering/Landscape design services for the US Route 36 
Corridor Beautification project 

 
5. RES. NO. R-84-12 

A Resolution authorizing the purchase of property 212-214 W. Ash Street, Parcel No. 
N44-002220 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Economic Development Update 
b. Department Update – Dean Burch, Information Technology 
 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday April 17, 2012 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson. Absent: None. 

 
OATH OF OFFICE – PIQUA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

LIEUTENANT RICHARD BYRON 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall administered the Oath of Office to Lieutenant Richard Byron. 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING APRIL 17, 2012  
 
Renewal of an application for placement of farmland in an agricultural district filed by Ellen J. 
Allenbaugh for Parcel #44-100640 in the City of Piqua. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to open the Public Hearing for 
public comment. Voice vote, Aye, Martin. Vogt, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay. None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
City Manager Huff stated this is a public hearing for an application received from Ellen J. 
Allenbaugh for placement of her farmland in an agricultural district in the City of Piqua. After this   
public hearing the City of Piqua will have thirty days to act on this. 
 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for organist the application for placement of the proposed farmland 
in the City of Piqua at this time.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to close the Public Hearing. 
Voice vote, Aye; Fess, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and Martin. Nay; None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to place the application on the 
next City Commission Agenda of May 1, 2012.  Voice vote,  Aye; Terry, Vogt, Wilson, Martin, and 
Fess. Nay; None. Motion carried unanimously. 
  

PRESENTATION – PIQUA SKATE PARK – RICHARD DONNELLY 
 

Mr. Donnelly came forward and presented a brief overview and designs of the plans for the Piqua 
Skate Park to be built at Pitsenbarger Park, and would be located next to the Municipal Swimming 
Pool in the near future.  Mr. Donnelly stated he researched various different designs, and traveled 
around looking at numerous other skate parks in the area before completing his final plans. 
Weather permitting, construction on the Skate Park should begin in early May with a tentative 
completion date sometime the end of June or early July.  This is something that Piqua has been 
neeeding for a long time, and is glad he is able to provide it, stated Mr. Donnelly. 
 
City Manager Huff stated this is a considerable donation by Mr. Donnelly as he is donating the 
design and construction of the Skate Park to the City of Piqua.  The city is very grateful to Mr. 
Donnelly for taking on the project, as it will be a great addition to the City of Piqua, stated Mayor 
Fess.   
 
 



 2

PROCLAMATION 
 

Week of the Young Child 
 

Mayor Fess read the proclamation for the Week of the Young Child and presented it to 
Commissioner Terry.  Commissioner Terry stated it is ironic that just this past week there was a 
death in the City of a young child which reminds us how precious our children are. Commissioner 
Terry further stated it is very important to educate our children and adults, and honor the teachers, 
daycare providers, and all those who are involved in the lives of young children in our community. 
 

RESIDENCE PRIDE AWARDS 
 

Mayor Fess read the names and addresses of the Residence Pride Award winners while a slide 
was shown of each property.  Mayor Fess thanked and congratulated all of them on taking pride in 
their homes, and also thanked those who nominated them. The winners include: 
 
 Randy & Carla Baker    214 E. Main Street 
 Michael & Reva Ray    1600 Manier Avenue 
 Carol Botts     626 & 628 W. Ash Street 
 Jonathan & Kim Stevens   720 Park Avenue 
 Paul & Irene Graham    1010 Elm Street 
 
Mayor Fess stated applications are available on the website or they can contact the City 
Manager’s office to pick up a form to nominate a neighbor or a friend home.   

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
Approval of the minutes from the April 3, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting.  
 
RES. NO. R-77-12 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Larry Hamilton as a member of the Community Diversity 
Committee 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry that the minutes of the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting of April 3, 2012, and Resolution No. R-77-12 be approved. Roll 
call, Aye:  Wilson, Terry, Martin, Vogt, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
RES. NO. R-78-12 
 
A Resolution authorizing an agreement with Watchguard for the purchase of six (6) mobile video 
recorders for the Police Department cruisers 
 
Police Chief Jamison stated the Police Department has been utilizing various grant opportunities 
over the past three years to replace in-car VHS camera systems with digital recorders that would 
be compatible with the in-house indexing and digital filing system for the recordings obtained in the 
field. Police Chief Jamison stated in May of 2011 the City responded to a Request for Proposals 
for JAG funding in the amount of $27,536.25.  In January of 2012 the Police Department entered 
into an agreement for an award of $23,405.78, and Watchguard was chosen as the provider.  
Police Department Policy calls for recording certain police/citizen contacts, and has come to 
expect these recordings in the court system, and in the public domain.  The recordings have 
become critical for successful prosecution of crimes such as OVI, as well as in defense of 
accusations against police officers, stated Chief Jamieson. 
 
There was discussion on the capability of moving the recorders from one car to another as the 
police cruisers are replaced.  Grant money was obtained to purchase the recorders, and is to be 
used for OVI stops.  This will also be a great asset to the officers for recording conversations and 
incidents in the field, stated Chief Jamieson. 



 3

 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-78-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-78-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-78-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-79-12 
 
A Resolution retaining the service of Horan to provide Health Insurance Consulting Services for 
the City of Piqua 
 
Human Resource Director Elaine Barton stated HORAN has been the City’s provider for the last 
two years and would like to continue with them for the 2012 year. HORAN has been very 
instrumental in working with the City on setting up an on-site clinic by bringing two different 
vendors to review proposals for the project. HORAN has met not only with the City, but also with 
the school system to discuss the needs with regards to an on-site clinic.  HORAN has been able to 
negotiate lower health insurance premiums for the City for the past two years, and they were able 
to negotiate a rate pass (0%) for the 2011 benefit plan year, and a single digit (9%) increase for 
the 2012 plan year. Each of these years a higher rate was initially released but through 
negotiations HORAN was able to save the city thousands of dollars.  HORAN has been able to 
keep the city informed with regards to the changes in recent health care laws, and the City does 
not incur broker fees with them, as they are paid a flat fee rather than a percentage of whichever 
health insurance coverage is chosen. 
 
City Manager Huff stated in working with HORAN on the on-site medical clinic they have provided 
a tremendous amount of work, and if it comes to be, the city will see some tremendous cost 
savings in the future. City Manager Huff further stated he believes the city will be getting a bargain 
for the amount of money being spent. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she has only heard good things about HORAN and is happy to have them 
working with the City of Piqua. 
 
HORAN Account Manager Julie Tople, stated she wanted to thank the City for approving them two 
years ago, further stating it has been a great experience working with the City, and she is looking 
forward to working with everyone in the future. The on-site clinic is very exciting for HORAN.  We 
have not worked with a project like this before but, City Manager Huff has pushed us to go forward 
with this project feels this will be an exciting process.  This project will probably be used with other 
HORAN clients, as the City of Piqua has set the bar very high for providing an on-site clinic and 
saving money, said Ms.Tople. 
 
HORAN Account Executive Eric Freudenberg stated it has been an honor to work with the City of 
Piqua, and they have truly fallen in love with the City.  They are also looking forward to working 
with the Piqua Chamber of Commerce to.  They are very appreciative of the quality of the staff in 
the City, and have enjoyed working with City Manager Huff, stated Mr. Freudenberg. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the on-site clinic will be a great benefit for city employees, and will be very cost 
effective in saving the City money on health insurance in the future.  City Manager Huff explained 
how the on-site clinic would operate, who would be eligible, what services would be offered along 
with the type of prescriptions that would be available, and the tremendous cost savings it would be 
to the City of Piqua. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the HORAN representatives for attending and providing the information, and 
further stated the city is looking forward to working with them in the future. 
 



 4

 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. 79-12 
  
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-79-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-79-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-80-12 
 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with O.R.Colan Associates for 
the right-of-way acquisition services for the County Road 25-A Phase II reconstruction project. 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar stated this resolution would allow the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with O.R. Colan Associates for the Right-of-Way Acquisition services for the County 
Road 25-A Phase II Reconstruction Project. The project construction limits are County Road 25-A 
from Country Club Road to Looney Road with the project being consistent with the improvements 
made on County Road 25-A Phase I Reconstruction Project completed in 2008.  The roadway will 
be widened to 4 lanes and will be modified from a rural cross-section to an urban cross-section 
with the utilities being updated as necessary.  New curbs, gutters, and sidewalks will be installed 
the full length of the project.  As with all projects utilizing federal money the city has to follow their 
rules when hiring a consultant. Three Requests for Qualifications were sent out and O.R. Colan 
Associates was chosen based on their qualifications, stated Ms. Havenar. 
 
There was discussion of providing sidewalks on both sides of the roadway, and it was stated with 
the schools being located in the area it is necessary to install sidewalks.  The question of bike 
lanes being installed on the roadway was also discussed, and it was stated the roadway would 
have five-foot wide sidewalks but would not have any dedicated bike lanes at this time. This is 
something with the Complete Streets Program that could be looked at down the road, stated Ms. 
Havenar.  It was mentioned that maybe sidewalks could be installed only on one side and a bike 
lane be installed on the other side. We only asked for sidewalks at this time, and with this type of 
grant funding all we can do is just sidewalks at this time, said Ms. Havenar.   
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-80-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-80-12 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Vogt.   Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-80-12 adopted. 
 
Monthly Reports – January 2012 
 
Monthly Reports for January 2012 were accepted. 
 
Public Comment 
 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide 
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 
 
No one came forward to speak at this time. 
 
 
 
 



 5

City Manager’s Report 
 
Economic Development Update 
 
Economic Development Director Bill Murphy announced the State of the Economic Development 
is scheduled for April 19, 2012 at the Ft. Piqua Plaza, 4th Floor from 5:30 P.M. – 7:00 P.M.   The 
speaker will be David R. Avdakov, Senior Portfolio Advisor from U.S. Bank, and will be highlighting 
several economic development projects from 2011 in Piqua.  
 
Mr. Murphy stated for three weeks in a row companies from the City of Piqua have been featured 
on the cover of the Dayton Business Journal.  These companies include Hartzell Air Movement for 
their high bay expansion project, WesCon Industries for their potential expansion of their growing 
business with the natural gas and energy sector, and Industry Products Company for their 
upcoming expansion that will add 125,000 square feet with up to 50 additional new jobs. The last 
two projects are subject to State Incentives and we will continue to work with the Dayton 
Development Coalition and Jobs Ohio, as we will be going to Columbus at the end of the month 
for the Industry Products project. Also will continue to work with the Ohio Department of 
Development, and the Ohio Department of Transportation on a rail spur for the WesCon project.  
This is great coverage and is very exciting news for the City of Piqua, stated Mr. Murphy. 
 
Department Update – Police Department-Chief Bruce Jamison 
 
Police Chief Jamison stated in light of the promotion of Lieutenant Richard A. Byron he would like 
to give a brief update on some of the little known facts of the Police Department Promotional 
Requirements. Chief Jamison stated the City of Piqua has a Civil Service Commission that is 
appointed by the City Commission, and consist of five dedicated citizens who establish rules 
related to hiring and promoting public safety employees.  
 
Chief Jamison further explained the various steps to the promotional process for the Police 
Officers.  
 
Chief Jamieson gave a brief history on the Police Department stating the first Chief of Police was 
appointed in 1903. The Civil Service Commission establishes the rules and regulates both the 
entry level and promotions.  The recent Police Lieutenant test was made up of 50% Written 
Examination, 25% Assessment Process, and 25% of a Panel Interview.   The written test was 
announced on December 21, 2011 with the test being given on February 21, 2012.  After the 
written examination there were 18 Eligible officers.  The next step was the Assessment Process 
which included the Human Resources Director, Chief of Police, Deputy Chiefs of Police, and a  
Lieutenant. The next step in the process was the Consultant Review of Organization, the 
Counseling Session, Oral Presentation, Written Problem-solving Exercise, and what they call an 
In-Basket Exercise, which was conducted on March 9, 2012. The next step was the Panel 
Interview held on March 16, the panel consisted of: Chief Jamison, the Human Resource Director, 
A City Department Head, and two Community Representatives.  The candidates were then 
notified of their written test scores (Raw), Assessment and Interview Scores (Raw), and notified of 
their rank order on the eligibility list.  Promotions will be made from the eligibility list for the next 
12-24 months, stated Chief Jamison. 
 
City Manager Huff stated also on Thursday April 19, the Building Sustainable Communities 
National Conference is scheduled at the Ft. Piqua Plaza with registration beginning at 7:30 A.M. 
and the program concluding at 3:30 P.M. This is a National Conference being hosted by the 
National Brownfield Association, and the City of Piqua is very fortunate to have this meeting held 
in Piqua. Attendees will be coming from all around the State into the community for this, and will 
be spending money in the city. This is a very positive thing for Piqua, and we would like to have 
this occur more often in the city, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
 
 
 



 6

City Manager Huff also explained the Drinking Water Notice that Piqua residents received in the 
mail recently.  This notice was sent out due to water testing where the water was found to have 
exceeded the trihalomethanes level and a notice is required to be sent out.  The water was always 
safe to drink, it just exceed the trihalomethanes level.  Basically, this occurs when the water 
remains motionless in the water lines or in the water tanks for a period of time. New procedures 
have been put into place to prevent this from occurring in the future.  Water lines will be flushed 
and the water in the water tanks will be turned over on a regular basis, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
Mayor Fess asked how the Water Department would go about changing the water or turning the 
water over in the water tanks.  City Manager Huff explained the process. 
 
City Manager Huff reminded citizens that May 5, 2012 is the citywide cleanup day. This is being 
referred to as” Piqua Pick it Up and Clean it Day” This is a citywide volunteer effort to clean up the 
parks, paths, and any public areas and will begin at 8:00 A.M. and conclude at 12:00. Anyone 
wishing to participate is encouraged to go online at www.piquaoh.org and register, or contact the 
City Manager’s office to sign up. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the winter was certainly good to the city regarding the use of salt, but 
now the grass is growing earlier and faster than we can keep up with it.  We have scheduled 
overtime to try to get caught up, further stating the City needs to be an example for the citizens by 
keeping our grass mowed, said City manager Huff. 
 
At the last City Commission Work Session on April 12, a Special Work Session was set for April 
26, 2012.  At this time we are going to cancel the Work Session on April 26, and will provide the 
information regarding the Joint Water Study with the City of Troy at the Regular Scheduled Work 
Session on May 10, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Comments 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated the city has received a lot of great news recently. The Skate Park will 
be a great addition to the City, as he had several inquiries as to when it will be done already.  Also 
other good news was the presentation that was presented last week at the Commission Work 
Session regarding the Canal Place Improvements between Ash Street and High Street. 
Commissioner Wilson thanked MainStreet Piqua for stepping up and undertaking this project. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Lieutenant Byron on his promotion noting she did not realize 
how much he had to go through for the promotion until she heard the presentation by Police Chief 
Jamison.  Commissioner Terry congratulated all of the Residence Pride winners stating it shows 
they have pride in their homes and their neighborhoods.  Also, if all citizens would take a moment 
to pick up and clean up the area in front of their homes this would make a huge difference in the 
community, stated Commissioner Terry. 
 
Commissioner Vogt thanked Mr. Donnelly for making the Skate Park a reality, as it has been a 
long time coming.  Commissioner Vogt also congratulated Lieutenant Byron on his promotion, and 
congratulated all of the Residence Pride Award winners.   
 
Mayor Fess stated with the announcement of the three new expansions recently they will be 
providing about 140 new jobs in the City of Piqua, which is very exciting news.  On Monday April 
16, Abbott Laboratories in Tipp City had their ground breaking.  Mayor Fess and Economic 
Development Director Bill Murphy attended the event and had the opportunity to speak with the 
Governor, Speaker of the House, and the Chairman of Abbott Laboratories reminding them the 
City of Piqua is here to help support suppliers of the new company.   
 
Mayor Fess stated she has heard nothing but raves about the Government Citizens Academy 
from people who are attending stating they are thrilled with what they are learning about the City. 
One attendee stated to the Mayor they felt everyone in the city should go through this as it exciting 
and educational and thinks it is wonderful.  Another Government Citizens Academy will begin 
again in the fall, and encouraged citizens to watch for the registration soon. 



 7

 
Mayor Fess stated she would be presenting a proclamation to the Rehabilitation Center in 
recognition of their 40 Years of outstanding work in the City of Piqua. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:30 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. 
Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                      RESOLUTION NO. R- 81 -12 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL 
APPLICATION FOR PLACEMENT OF FARMLAND 
IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FILED BY 
ELLEN J. ALLENBAUGH FOR PARCEL #N44-100640 
IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Ellen J. Allenbaugh has submitted a renewal application to 
designate Parcel # N44-100640 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) as an agricultural 
use; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing for renewal of the Application for Placement of 
Farmland in an Agricultural District filed by Ellen J. Allenbaugh was held on April 17, 
2012; 
 
 WHEREAS, parcel # N44-100640 is devoted exclusively for agricultural use; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the placement of this property in an agricultural use district will 
not adversely impact the City of Piqua’s development needs; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The renewal application to place parcel #N44-100640 is in an 
agricultural use district as provided by Ohio Revised Code Section 929.02 is hereby 
approved; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







 
 

Pertaining to AMP Contract No.C-2-2012-8999-R  
 
 

CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-82-12 

 

A RESOLUTON TO APPROVE THE FORM AND 

AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF BLUE CREEK WIND ENERGY SCHEDULE 

WITH 

AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. AND TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH REGARDING WIND GENERATED ENERGY 

PURCHASES 

 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua, Ohio, (“Municipality”) owns and operates an electric 
utility system for the sale of electric capacity and associated energy for the benefit of its citizens 
and taxpayers; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the electric capacity and energy requirements of its 
electric utility system, Municipality has heretofore purchased, or desires to purchase in the 
future, economical, reliable and environmentally sound capacity and energy and related services 
from, or arranged by, American Municipal Power, Inc. (“AMP”), of which Municipality is a 
member; and  

WHEREAS, AMP is an Ohio nonprofit corporation, organized to own and operate 
facilities, or to provide otherwise, for the generation, transmission or distribution of electric 
capacity and energy, or any combination thereof, and to furnish technical services on a 
cooperative, nonprofit basis, for the mutual benefit of AMP members (“Members”), such 
Members, including Municipality, being political subdivisions that operate municipal electric 
utility systems in Ohio, Kentucky, Michigan, Pennsylvania, Virginia and West Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Municipality, acting individually and through AMP with other political 
subdivisions of this and other states that own and operate electric utility systems, jointly, 
endeavors to arrange for reliable, environmentally sound and reasonably priced supplies of 
electric capacity and energy and related services for ultimate delivery to its customers; and  

WHEREAS, it is efficient and economical to act jointly in such regard; and 

WHEREAS, Municipality has previously entered into a Master Services Agreement with 
AMP, AMP Contract No. C-7-2004-4036, which contemplates that Municipality shall enter into 
various schedules for the provision of capacity and associated energy and related services from 
AMP to Municipality; and 



 2

WHEREAS, certain Members, including the Municipality have determined that they can 
utilize additional sources of reliable and economical wind generated electric capacity and energy 
on a long term basis at reasonable costs, and have requested that AMP arrange for the same by 
developing or otherwise acquiring interests in certain wind energy facilities (“Wind Facilities”); 
and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this purpose, AMP and Blue Creek Wind Farms, LLC 
(“Blue Creek”), have entered into an agreement (the “Blue Creek Wind Energy Agreement”) 
under the terms of which AMP is to purchase and Blue Creek is to supply and sell up to 54 MW 
of capacity and associated energy from Wind Facilities in Van Wert, Ohio for a period of ten 
(10) years; and  

WHEREAS, it is desirable for Municipality to enter into the Blue Creek Wind Energy 
Schedule to Municipality’s Master Services Agreement with AMP to provide for an additional 
source of capacity and energy; and 

WHEREAS, Members now have the right, but not the obligation by the enactment of this 
Resolution to authorize and request AMP to acquire capacity and energy from Wind Facilities by 
approval and execution of the Blue Creek Wind Energy Schedule authorized below; and  

 WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of this Resolution AMP has (i) informed the 
Municipality of the terms of the Blue Creek Wind Energy Agreement; (ii) provided the 
Municipality the opportunity to review  the Blue Creek Wind Energy Agreement; and (iii) 
offered representatives of the Municipality the opportunity to ask such questions, review data 
and reports, conduct inspections and otherwise perform such investigations with respect to, as 
applicable, the acquisition of capacity and energy and the terms and conditions of the Blue Creek 
Wind Energy Schedule authorized below as Municipality deems necessary or appropriate in 
connection herewith; and 

 WHEREAS, after due consideration, the Municipality has determined it is reasonable and 
in its best interests to proceed as authorized herein below and requests and authorizes AMP to 
acquire capacity and energy from Blue Creek upon those terms and conditions set forth in the 
Blue Creek Wind Energy Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
PIQUA, MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO, THE MAJORITY OF ALL MEMBERS ELECTED 
THERETO CONCURRING THAT: 

 SECTION 1. That the Blue Creek Wind Energy Schedule between Municipality and 
AMP, substantially in the form attached hereto or on file with the Clerk, including Exhibits 
thereto, are approved, and the City Manager of this Municipality is hereby authorized to execute 
and deliver the Blue Creek Wind Energy Schedule with such changes as the City Manager may 
approve as neither inconsistent with this Resolution nor materially detrimental to the 
Municipality, his or her execution of the Blue Creek Wind Energy Schedule to be conclusive 
evidence of such approval. 

 SECTION 2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to (i) acquire under the Blue 
Creek Wind Energy Schedule, authorized above, a Contract Amount as defined in that Schedule 
of up to 5000 kW without bid, and (ii) make any determinations and approvals required 
thereunder, if any, as the City Manager shall deem necessary and advisable. 



 3

 SECTION 3. If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision or any part 
thereof of this Resolution shall be finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, the remainder of this Resolution shall be unaffected by such adjudication and all the 
remaining provisions of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect as though such 
section, subsection, paragraph, clause or provision or any part thereof so adjudicated to be 
invalid had not, to the extent of such invalidity, been included herein. 

 SECTION 4. That this Resolution shall take effect at the earliest date allowed by law. 

SECTION 5. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this City 
Commission concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were taken in 
conformance with applicable open meetings laws and that all deliberations of this City 
Commission and of any committees that resulted in those formal actions were in compliance 
with all legal requirements including any applicable open meetings requirements.   

 

       ___________________________ 

       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 

PASSED:  _______________________ 

ATTEST:  _______________________ 

       REBECCA J. COOL 

                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

O

 

(Incl

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

RDINANCE/R

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

RESOLUTIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

 

 
E 

 
May 1, 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

 
A Resolu
Wind En
other act

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

N 
 
 
 

 
1st Re

 
Ordinanc

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

 
Since th
market p
that time
electric p
recomme
term pow
power su
Power (A
coal-fire
cycle ge
Cannelto
River hy
 
Piqua ha
Creek W
Northwe
agreeme
recomme
translate
renewab
by 2015
Standard
adopt Sa
  

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2012 

ution to appr
nergy Schedu
tions in conn

& Title: Ed K
ment: Power 

ent 

eading 

ce #:      
Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc

e 1996 closu
purchases fo
e period, the 
price spikes
ended and P
wer supply 
upply resour
AMP), Inc.

ed generatin
enerating p
on, Smithlan
ydro generati

as the opport
Wind Energy
est Ohio.  AM
ent for up to
ended that 

es to 5% of t
ble, carbon-f

.  This leve
d.  Piqua E
awvel’s reco

mmissi
ff Repo

rove the form
ule with Am
nection there

Krieger, Powe
System 
 

Ordinanc

 
2nd Read

ger/Developm
ctor 

ure of Piqua
or the major
market has 

s to Piqua cu
Piqua City 
plan based 

rces through
 Piqua is a
g station, F
lant, as we
nd, Willow 
ing facilities

tunity to part
y Project lo
MP has nego
 54 megawa
Piqua partic
the City’s en
free resource
el is compar
Energy Boar
mmendation

ion Ag
ort 

m and autho
merican Mun
ewith regard
er System D

ce 
 

ding 
 

 
Re

ment 

a’s coal-fired
rity of the C
experienced

ustomers.  A
Commission
on diversity

h the City’s m
a partial own
Fremont Ene
ell as renew
Island, Mel

s. 

rticipate in th
ocated in Pa
otiated a ver
atts (MW) o
cipate at a 
nergy needs.
es will provi
rable to the 
rd recomme
n at their Ap

genda  

orize the exec
nicipal Power
ding wind ge
Director  

Resolution 

3rd Reading

esolution #R
Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other: Ener

d generating 
City’s power
d extreme vo
As a result, P
n has adopte
y of supply 
membership
ner of the P
ergy Center
wable proje
ldahl and G

he recently c
aulding and
ry favorable 
of the 304 M
level up to 
.  When add
ide 20% of 
State of Oh

ended that P
pril 24, 2012 

Item

          

cution of Blu
r, Inc. and ta
nerated purc

 
Re

g 
 
 

R-82-12  
Manager/Fin
or 
rgy Board 

plant, Piqua
r supply nee

olatility whic
Piqua Energ
ed a less vo
and joint o

p in America
Prairie State 
r natural ga
ects, which 

Green-up run

completed Ib
d Van Wert 

ten-year pow
MW project. 

5,000 kilow
ded to the hy

the City’s e
hio’s Renew
Piqua City 
meeting. 

m #3

 

ue Creek 
aking of 
chases  

gular 

nance 

a has utilized
eds.  During
ch resulted in
gy Board ha
olatile, long
ownership o
an Municipa
mine-mouth

as combined
include the

n-of-the-Ohio

berdrola Blue
Counties in

wer purchase
 Sawvel ha

watts, which
ydro projects
energy need

wable Energy
Commission

d 
g 
n 
s 

g-
f 

al 
h 

d-
e 
o 

e 
n 
e 
s 
h 
s, 
s 
y 
n 



 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  2012 Power Supply Budget - $18,727,000 
Expenditure $:  2012 Projected Wind Purchase - $285,300 
Source of Funds: 401-203-555-7482 
Narrative:  Included in the 2012 Power System budget is $18,727,000 

for Power Supply Costs.  Terms of the ten-year Blue Creek 
Wind Energy Power Purchase Agreement are comparable to 
current historically-low market rates.  Participation in this 
power purchase agreement will provide a hedge against 
volatile market prices and further stabilize Piqua’s overall 
Power Supply costs.  In addition, the sale of associated 
Renewable Energy Credits (RECs), will serve to further 
lower the cost of this renewable resource.      

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-82-12 allowing Piqua to purchase up to 5,000 
kilowatts of the Blue Creek Wind Energy Power Purchase Agreement. 

2. Defeat Resolution No. R-82-12 and forego the opportunity to participate in 
the Blue Creek Wind Energy Power Purchase Agreement. 
 

 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 
Piqua would begin taking up to 5,000 kilowatts of the Blue Creek Wind Energy 
Power Purchase Agreement beginning July 1, 2012 and terminating  
June 30, 2022. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approve Resolution No. R-82-12 thereby enabling Piqua to purchase up to 
5,000 kilowatts in the Blue Creek Wind Energy Power Purchase Agreement. 
 

ATTACHMENTS  Sawvel Review of Blue Creek Wind Project. 

 

























RESOLUTION NO. R-83-12 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH EDSALL 
& ASSOCIATES LLC FOR THE 
ENGINEERING/LANDSCAPE DESIGN SERVICES 
FOR THE US ROUTE 36 CORRIDOR 
BEAUTIFICATION PROJECT  

 
WHEREAS, on January 3, 2012 this Commission passed Resolution No. 

R-2-12 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for Engineering/Landscape Services for the US Route 36 Corridor 
Beautification Project; and  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, Edsall & 
Associates LLC has been determined to be the most qualified provider of these 
services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Edsall & 
Associates LLC for the necessary engineering/landscape services for the US 
Route 36 Corridor Beautification Project; 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in 
payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $52,250; 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 1, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an Agreement with Edsall & 
Associates LLC for the Engineering/Landscape Design Services for the US 
Route 36 Corridor Beatification Project. 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-83-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

In June of 2009, City Commission approved the submission of the US Route 36 
Corridor Beautification Project to the Miami Valley Regional Planning 
Commission for funding under the Transportation Enhancement (TE) Program.  
This project was one of the projects selected for funding and this resolution 
would allow us to begin the design process. 

As with all projects utilizing federal money, the selected consultants must be on 
ODOT’s prequalified consultants list.  Utilizing that list, Request for Proposals 
were sent out to six consultants.  From the proposals submitted, Edsall & 
Associates LLC was selected as the most qualified consultant to perform the 
design services as identified in the RFP Scope of Services.   

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $50,000 
Expenditure $:  $52,250 (includes 10% contingency) 
Source of Funds: Local  
Narrative:  The work limits for this project extend along the US Route 

36 corridor from the overhead railroad bridge to the west 
and Looney Road on the east.  The project scope includes 
removing and or replacing portions of the utilitarian right of 
way fence and light post with a decorative fence and light 
post types; installing curbing around the existing grass 
median area to the west of the interstate bridge and 
excavating the painted median east of the bridge and adding 
curb and topsoil to this area to create a planting area, and 



planting the medians and shoulder embankment areas with 
native tree and bush species appropriate to the spaces 
available.  The improvements will be designed to 
complement the US Route 36/I-75 Beautification Project 
completed last year.  

The City received $288,945 in grant funding from MVRPC 
for the construction of this project.  The total cost is 
estimated to be $525,000.  As with all federally funded 
projects, the engineering costs associated with the project 
are funded with 100% local funds.  The project is scheduled 
to begin construction in the summer of 2013.  

There is capacity in the 103 Fund (Account 8836) to pay for 
the additional $2,000 over the estimated budget amount (if 
needed).       

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution to enter into an agreement with Edsall & 
Associates LLC for the engineering/landscape design services for the US 
Route 36 Corridor Beatification Project. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and do not complete the US Route 36 
Corridor Beatification Project and return the funding. 

3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The engineering design would begin immediately with project construction 
scheduled for the summer of 2013. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approval of the Resolution to allow for engineering/landscape design to begin 
on the US Route 36 Corridor Beatification Project. 

ATTACHMENTS  Technical Proposal for the engineering/landscape design. 

 

















RESOLUTION NO. R-84-12 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 212-214 W. ASH STREET, 

PARCEL NO. N44-002220 
 
WHEREAS, 212-214 W. Ash Street is a residential structure in poor repair and is 

a blighting influence on the surrounding properties; and 
 

WHEREAS, State and local law require the homeowner to either demolish or 
repair the structure, providing the City the authority to indicate when the condition of the 
property has been satisfactorily remedied; and  

 
WHEREAS, 212-214 W. Ash Street is located within the Downtown Historic 

District, the Central Business District, and the Caldwell Historic District; and,    
 

WHEREAS, the property owner desires to donate 212-214 W. Ash Street to the 
City of Piqua; and  

 
WHEREAS, acceptance of the donation would be contingent upon the 

mortgagee releasing interest in the subject property and contingent upon securing a 
purchaser for the subject property agreeable to completing the demolition of the existing 
structure and the restoration of the site at no expense to the City of Piqua. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase 212-214 W. Ash 
Street, Parcel No. N44-002220, in an amount not to exceed one dollar ($1.00), 
contingent upon the mortgagee releasing interest in the subject property and 
contingent upon securing a purchaser for the subject property agreeable to 
completing the demolition of the existing structure and the restoration of the site at 
no expense to the City of Piqua. 

 
SECTION 2.  There is a public benefit of purchasing 212-214 W. Ash Street to effect 
the demolition of the existing structure to eliminate a blighting influence in the 
Downtown Historic District, the Central Business District, and the Caldwell Historic 
District. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

              
              
        _________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED: __________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 



 

 

City Commission Agenda      Item # 5       
Staff Report 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
5/1/2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Requesting Authorization to Purchase 212-214 W. Ash Street 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
Department: Development Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 Public Hearing 

 
Ordinance #:  

 
Resolution #: R-84-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Law Director 
Asst. City Manager/Development Other: 

  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

The proposed resolution will authorize the City Manager to purchase the property known as 
212-214 W. Ash Street.  The subject property is a blighting influence on the neighborhood and 
has been a long standing nuisance to the neighboring property owners.  The current owner lacks 
the resources necessary to respond to the raze or repair orders previously issued by the City of 
Piqua Health Department and is agreeable to donating the property to the City to facilitate the 
remediation of the current conditions found at this location.  The City is also in contact with the 
mortgagee for this property who is agreeable to releasing all interest in the property to the City 
and is the process of completing this action.      

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 
Expenditure $: 0 
Narrative:  The purchase of the subject property will be contingent upon securing a 

buyer for the property who agrees to demolish the existing structure and 
restore the site at no expense to the City.  An adjacent property owner has 
expressed an interest in filling the role of buyer and the City is c currently 
negotiating with this party to achieve the stated goal of demolition and 
restoration of this site.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution to facilitate the transfer of ownership to a third 
party agreeable to demolishing the existing structure and restoring the site.  

2. Reject the resolution and await remedial action by the current property 
owner and/or foreclosure action by the mortgagee.   

3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

May 1, 2012 – City Commission – Adoption of Resolution 
June 2012 – Complete transaction transferring ownership of property. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the resolution to facilitate transfer of the property to a party agreeable 
to demolishing the existing structure and restoring the site.  

 








